
Mandan Community Beautification Committee 
Thursday, September 10, 2015 

7:30 a.m. 
Mandan City Hall 

205 Second Avenue NW 
 
A. Roll Call:  

1. Roll call of committee members and liaisons 
Chairman Damian Huettl called the meeting to order. Members 
present are marked with a . 
 
B. Consider minutes from meeting on August 13, 2015  
Laurie Leingang moved to approve the minutes as presented. 
Amy Schmidt seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
C. Report on graffiti ordinance. (Jim) 
Jim Neubauer provided a report on the graffiti ordinance.  A 
draft has been forwarded to City Attorney Malcolm Brown for 
his review. It will appear before the City Commission at an 
October meeting.  
 
D. Report on proposed garbage container ordinance (Jim) 
The committee last discussed the garbage container ordinance 
at its April meeting. The committee drafted language that 
required commercial or industrial properties to have a three-
sided or enclosed area for the storage of garbage containers. If 
space doesn’t allow, the property owner may enter into an 
agreement with a neighboring property regarding the storage of 
garbage containers. Neubauer asked if this was retroactive, if it 
would only affect new construction and remodels, or if it would 
become effective at some future date. He noted it would be 
virtually impossible for many downtown properties. Ellen Huber 
questioned if there could be a provision for areas with zero 
setback allowances.  
 
Bob Decker recommended allowing six months for compliance 
and establishing a process that allows property owners to 
request an exception for their property. He recommended the 
Mandan Architectural Review Committee would handle the 
requests, looking for alternatives before approval.   
 
Neubauer questioned if the word “may” was sufficient in the 
committee’s recommended language, “Each commercial or 
industrial property owner shall provide an opaque three-sided 
or an opaque enclosed area to store garbage containers. Should 
the lot not have sufficient space to provide such a facility, the 
property owner may enter into a formal agreement with a 
neighboring property for the storage of a garbage container.”  
 

Committee Members: 
Chairperson 
  Damian Huettl, Citizen 
Term: 2013-2016 
 
Vice Chairperson 
  Laurie Leingang, Citizen 
Term: 2013-2016 
 
  Tammy Lapp-Harris, Citizen 
Term: 2015-2018 
 
  Amy Schmidt, Citizen 
Term: 2015-2018 
 
  Dale Schwindt, Citizen 
Term: 2013-2015 
 
  Brian Dehnert, Citizen  
Term: 2015-2015 
 
  Jim Neubauer, 
Administration 
 
 Doug Lalim, Building 
Inspection 
 
  Ellen Huber, Business 
Development & 
Communications 
 
  Keith Johnson, Custer 
Health 
 
  Steve Nardello, Fire 
 
  Justin Froseth, Planning & 
Engineering 
 
  Dennis Bullinger, Police 
 
  Jeff Wright, Public Works 
 
Liaisons: 
  Robert Decker, City 
Planner 
 
  Joe Camisa, Code 
Enforcement Officer 
 
  Krista Harju, Program 
Coordinator 
 



Community Beautification Committee 
Thursday, September 10, 2015 

Page 2 of 5 
 
Neubauer will visit with Decker and City Attorney Malcolm Brown on the location of the 
container. He will also ask Brown if “must” should be substituted in the place of “may.”  
 
E. Outdoor storage for industrial, commercial and potentially residential properties. Present 1st 

Draft of Mandan Ordinance (Bob - bring proposed language for different types of industrial 
and commercial zones) 

Decker made changes to the lot clearing article in the nuisance chapter and included outdoor 
storage with exceptions to the refuse and rubbish section already existing in the code. Many of 
the restrictions suggested by the committee currently exist in the municipal code. Any additions 
could be folded into the existing language. 
 
Huber felt Section 16-03-09 regarding commercial and industrial uses is not as clear as the 
committee recommended. It doesn’t say anything about distinguishing items for sale as 
compared to items being stored. She recommended revisiting the language the committee 
recommended.  
 
Huber suggested replace “putrescible,” in 16-03-01 with a simpler term. Neubauer agreed. 
Decker will look for a more simple term. Huettl suggested deleting the words putrescible and 
non-putrescible entirely. 
 
Huber noted there is no distinction for outdoor storage requirements between residential and 
commercial. Decker will look into splitting it into two different sections.  
 
Huettl suggested eliminating the word, “solid,” from solid waste, as waste could also be liquid. 
 
Huber noted by inserting the committee’s recommendations into the existing section, other issues 
beyond outdoor storage are arising. The discussion on outdoor storage was meant to address 
what could be stored outside and in public view and what should be screened from public view.  
 
Decker will make the changes based on the committee’s comments and bring an updated draft to 
the Oct. 8 meeting.  
 
F. Review and discuss memo to City Commission related to changes proposed to property 

maintenance code, including penalty provisions (Ellen) 
Huber removed all references to percentages. Areas that still require discussion include: animal 
sanitation, information regarding pools of water and outdoor storage. 
 
Pools of water are not addressed in the nuisance ordinance. Camisa suggested citing it under the 
general nuisance ordinance, 17-1-1. Huber suggested including the language in the property 
maintenance ordinance, as it requires properties to be maintained free of trash and not provide a 
breeding ground for insects. Leingang asked if Keith Johnson was looking into the topic of 
standing water. Schmidt noted it was on the list for future items.  
 
Huber asked the committee if outdoor storage should be included in the property maintenance 
code or put elsewhere. Based on the committee’s discussion, she felt it might be best located in 
the nuisance ordinance or planning and zoning ordinance.   
 

1. Recommendations regarding animal sanitation (Joe) 



Community Beautification Committee 
Thursday, September 10, 2015 

Page 3 of 5 
 
The nuisance chapter does not currently have a section regarding animal waste. Joe Camisa 
recommends inserting this information under the animal title. Camisa said there are three areas 
that should be addressed regarding animal waste. People are walking their animals on public 
property. Dogs running around at large are defecating on other people’s property. Property 
owners aren’t cleaning up animal waste on their own property.  
 
He recommends adopting new language regarding these issues and placing it under the animal 
title as 6-2-13 Waste. It makes it more understandable and more easily enforced, as it is 
explicitly stated and doesn’t require an interpretation of the nuisance chapter. He recommends 
making it complaint driven.  
 
Huber recommended changing the language in Section 6-2-13 Subsection A from “outside of…” 
to “beyond,” and to add “other pets,” to dogs and cats (dogs, cats and other pets) 
 
Huber moved to recommend adoption of the provision regarding animal waste. Amy Schmidt 
seconded.  
 
Neubauer asked for the committee’s recommendation on a citation amount. Camisa 
recommended $20. Decker suggested starting at $20 and escalating it. Dennis Bullinger 
questioned if issues regarding animal waste would require a long form or short form complaint.  
 
Huettl asked for a further explanation on the language, “must be removed periodically.” Camisa 
said it is when it is becomes odorous. Heuttl suggested replacing periodically with daily. Decker 
said it wouldn’t be feasible to monitor and enforce on a daily basis. Huettl said it would make it 
easier to enforce if it were more specific. Camisa disagreed, saying, use of the term periodically 
gives him more flexibility in enforcing. Huettl pointed out the second paragraph states the officer 
may issue a citation, implying the officer is not required to issue the citation. He said the lack of 
specificity could be argued in court, as one person’s definition of periodically could differ from 
another’s.  
 
Decker said complaints are more likely to be in relation to odor rather than the time the animal 
waste sat in the area. Neubauer added an acceptable timeframe could vary depending on the size 
of the animal and the number of animals on the property. 
 
Bullinger suggested striking the word periodically. Leingang agreed. Brian Dehnert suggested 
including language addressing the visibility of excessive accumulation. Leingang suggested 
referring to it as “unsightly accumulation.” The committee agreed to strike “periodically” and 
add “unsightly accumulation” to the language. 
 
Huettl said he cannot support something when he doesn’t know what it will be. Huber withdrew 
her motion. Schmidt withdrew her second.  
 
Camisa and Decker will work on the animal waste ordinance and bring it back to the Oct. 8 
meeting. Huber will remove the issue from the property maintenance memo. She will bring an 
updated version to the Oct. 8 meeting.  
 
G. Report on status of proposed changes to the grass cutting and weed ordinance (Joe) 



Community Beautification Committee 
Thursday, September 10, 2015 

Page 4 of 5 
 
Camisa and Decker have been working on finalizing the grass cutting and weed ordinance, 
Section 16-5-2. A draft was presented to the committee at the last meeting.  
 
Huber questioned if agricultural properties should be exempt from weed control. Camisa 
explained the code differentiates between weeds and noxious weeds. Noxious weeds are required 
to be eradicated. The code addresses both grass and weeds because late in the growing season 
grass isn’t growing but weeds may be. Noxious weeds need to be eradicated; other weeds need 
to be cut to a maximum height of six inches. Camisa offered to insert language specifying the 
agricultural exceptions do not apply to noxious weeds. Huber asked if the City can require 
agricultural properties to control their weeds. Decker said the state law would prevail. Camisa 
said property owners are required by state law to control noxious weeds. Huber suggested 
adding the word “purposes” to subsection 2 to read, “Land zoned for agricultural purposes is 
exempt from these requirements.” 
 
Camisa explained that state and federal properties are exempt, because the City isn’t allowed to 
go onto the easements to cut them. Conservation easements allow natural vegetation to grow. 
 
Heuttl recommended including language making steep slopes exempt from mowing for purposes 
of erosion control. Brian Dehnert noted that the 45-degree slope listed may be too steep. He said 
Bobcat equipment is rated for use to 30 degrees of slope. 
 
Camisa and Decker will update the draft based on the committee’s recommendations and will 
bring it back to the Oct. 8 meeting. 
 
H. Other Business 
Schmidt asked if any action had been taken regarding the possible implementation of a citywide 
requirement of the use of 96-gallon garbage totes. Neubauer said the City is receiving some 
pushback about the costs associated with recycling, so it may not be the best time to begin 
requiring containers for regular garbage. He also noted that other projects are currently being 
prioritized, but the issue could be re-addressed in the next budget year. The City’s cost is 
expected to be about $500,000. The contract with Armstrong Sanitation will expire in 2017. The 
City could request that containers are included in future bid proposals. Huber speculated that 
25to 30% of the community is already using the totes.  

  
I. Future Meetings 

1. Thursday, September 10, 2015  7:30 a.m. 
2. Thursday, October 8, 2015  7:30 a.m. 

 
J. Adjourn 
Having no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 
FUTURE 2014-15 AGENDA ITEMS: 

1. Consider signage to discourage littering 
2. Suggestions from Joe on potential code changes 
3. Discussion of regulations regarding rodent harborage. See IPC 302.5 (Keith)  
4. Discussion of regulations regarding grading and drainage with respect to standing water. 

See IPC 302.2 (Justin or Keith) 



Community Beautification Committee 
Thursday, September 10, 2015 

Page 5 of 5 
 

5. Discussion of regulations regarding Dutch Elm and Ash Borer Disease. See Mandan 
Public Nuisance Code 17-03 

6. Discussion of regulations regarding outdoor hot tubs and pools. See IPC 303.1 – 303.2 
7. Community Clean-up Day 

 
 
ITEMS FOR FOLLOW-UP: 

• Neubauer will visit with Decker and City Attorney Malcolm Brown on the location of the 
container ordinance. He will also ask Brown if the committee’s recommended language 
is sufficient.  

• Decker will make changes to the proposed language for outdoor storage based upon the 
committee’s recommendations.  

• Ellen will provide an updated draft of the property maintenance memo. 
• Camisa and Decker will work on the animal waste ordinance and bring it back to the 

Oct. 8 meeting.  
• Camisa and Decker will update the draft grass cutting and weed ordinance based on the 

committee’s recommendations and will bring it back to the Oct. 8 meeting. 
 


